

Wednesday, 14 June 2023

Dear Sir/Madam

A meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on Thursday, 22 June 2023 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, NG9 1AB, commencing at 7.00 pm.

Should you require advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please contact the Monitoring Officer at your earliest convenience.

Yours faithfully

MEHAL

Chief Executive

To Councillors: S Dannheimer (Chair) E Williamson (Vice-Chair) H L Crosby K Harlow S P Jeremiah H Land W Mee J M Owen A W G A Stockwell C M Tideswell S Webb E Winfield K Woodhead

<u>A G E N D A</u>

1. <u>APOLOGIES</u>

To receive apologies and to be notified of the attendance of substitutes.

2. <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable pecuniary interest and/or other interest in any item on the agenda.

3. <u>MINUTES</u>

(Pages 3 - 6)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2023.

Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB www.broxtowe.gov.uk

4. INTRODUCTION TO SCRUTINY

A presentation will be provided by the Head of Governance of the process for Overview and Scrutiny.

5. <u>CONTINUING EFFECTIVE SCRUTINY</u>

(Pages 7 - 46)

To inform the Committee of their specific powers and to identify topics for scrutiny.

6. <u>CONSIDERATION OF CALL - IN</u>

To consider any matter referred to the Committee for a decision in relation to the call in of a decision.

7. CABINET WORK PROGRAMME

(Pages 47 - 48)

To inform the Committee of items on the Cabinet's work programme, from which items for scrutiny may be identified.

8. WORK PROGRAMME

Committee is asked to approve its Work Programme, including identifying topics for scrutiny, that will help to achieve the Council's key priorities and associated objectives.

(Pages 49 - 54)

Agenda Item 3

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2023

Present: Councillor J C Patrick, Chair

Councillors: S Easom L Ellis M J Crow S Dannheimer L Fletcher C M Tideswell I L Tyler D Grindell (Substitute) H G Khaled MBE (Substitute) H Land (Substitute) D D Pringle (Substitute)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D K Watts, M Hannah, E Kerry, P J Owen and R S Robinson

Councillor H E Skinner was also in attendance.

Officers in attendance were E Georgiou, J Ward, L Evans and P Wolverson who attended via Teams.

53 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

54 <u>MINUTES</u>

The minutes of the meetings held on 12, 30 and 31 January 2023 were confirmed and signed as a correct record.

55 MINUTES FROM WORKING GROUPS

Members noted the minutes from the Missed Bins Working Group

56 CONSIDERATION OF CALL - IN

Members were informed that no call-ins had been received.

57 <u>CABINET WORK PROGRAMME</u>

The Committee noted the Cabinet Work Programme.

58 MISSED BINS SCRUTINY REVIEW

The Committee received the report on Missed Bins. The Vice-Chair of the working group gave a summary at the meeting of the report. The purpose of the report was to achieve the outcome identified in the scoping report of understanding why bins were missed and if the number of missed bins could be reduced. The review was in accordance with the Council values of innovation and readiness for change, valuing employees and enabling the active involvement of everyone, continuous improvement and delivering value for money, and integrity and professional competency.

Discussions ensued with the process of glass collection and vehicle specifications. Officers confirmed to the Committee the glass collection process and Management controls that took place. Members commented that along with other authorities it was necessary for the waste collections to commence before the times stated in the recommendation in extreme weather. Members agreed to add the additional wording to the first recommendation.

The Portfolio for Environment and Climate Change attended the meeting.

RESOLVED that the following be **RECOMMENDED** to Cabinet:

- 1. To ensure that residual, recycling, and garden waste bin collections do not commence before 6.30am and glass recycling collection do not commence before 7am unless in circumstances of extreme weather with management checking vehicle tachographs at least once a month.
- 2. To ensure that employees do not 'dunk' residents glass recycling bins
- 3. To investigate vehicle specification (particularly narrow track vehicles) to facilitate access to difficult access areas)
- 4. To improve the communication between the crews supporting each other on the brown lidded (garden waste) service.
- 5. Create a process, as part of a review of the Waste Strategy, that addresses bins that have not been presented for collection in the correct manner including for example, charging for collection and/or not returning to collect.
- 6. Implement an enhanced investigation and engagement process, that includes the householder, in relation to repeat missed bins.
- 7. Where a bin is missed due to service failure it will be collected as soon as practically possible and within 5 working days.
- 8. To ensure the vehicle specification is included by Environment Services in every new development consultation response to Planning Services.
- 9. Bins should be returned to the point of collection after being emptied where it is safe to do so.

59 REVIEW OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members reviewed the last year of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Discussions ensued of what worked well and improvements that could be made for the new Committee to consider. Some of the comments were as follows:

- Enjoyed being at the meetings, worthwhile committee to sit on.
- Interesting to be part of the Committee, would like to see how the Committee engage with the public. What do the residents think?
- Very interesting learning experience.
- It's brilliant, a really good committee
- Time was an issue, finding the time to discuss was difficult. Too many members on working groups. Format for the presentations.
- We've struggled to get through the meetings with time pressures.
- Start times should work for younger people.
- Engage with the residents.
- Scrutiny must be Member led.
- Portfolio holders should attend the budget meetings.
- Processes can be lengthy and repetitious.
- Scrutiny pool should be larger.
- Officers should not be defensive and allow Members to help.
- Working groups should be more frequent
- Some meetings could take place without officer's present
- Questions for officers should be pre-written.
- Scrutiny was a vital function now we have a cabinet system.
- Learn from other council's over budget scrutiny, start budget scrutiny earlier.

60 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee resolved that the work programme with The Cost of Living Review being returned for future consideration and Homes for Life suggested by Councillor S J Carr to be added.

RESOLVED that the work programme be approved.

This page is intentionally left blank

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report of the Monitoring Officer

CONTINUING EFFECTIVE SCRUTINY

1. <u>Purpose of Report</u>

To inform the Committee of their specific powers and to identify topics for scrutiny.

2. <u>Recommendation</u>

The Committee is asked to NOTE the process and forms for identifying topics for scrutiny.

3. <u>Detail</u>

This Committee has been appointed to scrutinise the actions of the Executive and to review the policies and practices of the Council. It has the power to inquire, research and report on matters within its remit and can determine which topics are selected for scrutiny. In addition, it can 'call-in' decisions of the Executive within three days of the publication of Cabinet minutes, enabling further consideration to be given to them. Chapter 2 Part 7 of the constitution is included at appendix 1.

It is suggested that, initially, topics for scrutiny be suggested by Councillors and Officers through the use of the Scrutiny Form at appendix 2. Topics that are to be investigated will then be scoped using the Scoping Form at appendix 3. Once an opening work programme is established, the aim is to allow members of the public to refer matters of concern to the Committee.

4. Financial Implications

The comments from the Head of Finance Services were as follows:

There are no anticipated financial implications for the Council's approved budget.

5. <u>Legal Implications</u>

The comments from the Monitoring Officer / Head of Legal Services were as follows:

The requirement for local authorities in England to establish overview and scrutiny committees is set out in sections 9F to 9FI of the Local Government Act 2000 as amended by the Localism Act 2011. This was to ensure Members of an authority who were not part of the executive could hold the executive to account for the decisions and actions that affect their communities.

6. <u>Human Resources Implications</u>

The comments from the Human Resources Manager were as follows:

Not applicable

7. Union Comments

The Union comments were as follows:

Not applicable

8. <u>Climate Change Implications</u>

The comments from the Waste and Climate Change Manager were as follows:

Not applicable

9. Data Protection Compliance Implications

This report does not contain any [OFFICIAL (SENSITIVE)] information and there are no Data Protection issues in relation to this report.

10. Equality Impact Assessment

As this is a change to policy / a new policy an equality impact assessment is included in the appendix to this report.

11. Background Papers

Nil



APPENDIX 1

Broxtowe Borough Council Constitution

Chapter 2 – Part 7

Overview & Scrutiny Arrangements and Procedure Rules

This page is intentionally left blank

Chapter 2 Part 7: OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS AND PROCEDURE RULES

1. The Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Arrangements for Overview & Scrutiny

The Council will have an Overview & Scrutiny Committee which may appoint Scrutiny Sub-Committees or working groups to carry out detailed examination of particular topics for report back to it. Such Sub-Committees or working groups may be appointed for a fixed period on the expiry of which they shall cease to exist.

Any Member of the Council may refer a matter to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee in accordance with Rule 8 below.

2. The Membership of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee

All Members of the Council except Members of the Cabinet (or Committees of the Cabinet), the Mayor and Deputy Mayor of the Council are eligible for appointment as Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee. However, no Member may be involved in scrutinising a decision in which they have been directly involved.

3. Co-Optees

The Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to appoint a maximum of six people as non-voting co-optees either as standing Members of the Committee or on a time limited basis to assist with the Committee; and may also appoint non-voting co-optees to assist with Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Committees or working groups. The selection and nomination of co-opted Members shall be in accordance with any protocol agreed by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

4. Meetings of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee

The Council may determine a cycle of meetings for the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and its Sub-Committees (if any). If the Council do not set the cycle, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall determine its own cycle of meetings. The Chair, or in their absence the Vice-Chair, may change the date or cancel meetings, or call additional meetings as they consider necessary to deal with the Committee's work programme. A meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and any of its Sub-Committees may be called by its Chair (or in their absence, the Vice-Chair) or by the Monitoring Officer, if they consider it necessary or appropriate.

5. Quorum

The quorum for an Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committees one quarter of the Members of the Committee rounded up and not less than three.

6. The Chair

There shall be a Chair and a Vice-Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee appointed by the Council. The Chair and the Vice-Chair of and a Scrutiny Sub-Committee, shall be appointed by the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee as required.

- 6.1 In the absence of the Chair the Vice-Chair can exercise the powers of the Chair.
- 6.2 The Chair and the Vice-Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to attend each Scrutiny Sub-Committee [and may participate in the meeting but shall not be entitled to vote].

7. Work Programme

The Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Sub-Committees will, following consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, set their own work programme and in doing so they shall take into account wishes of Members on that Committee who are not Members of the largest political group on the Council.

8. Agenda Items

- 8.1 Any Member of the Council, including Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee shall be entitled to give notice to the Monitoring Officer that they wish an item relevant to the functions of the Committee to be included on the agenda for the next available meeting. Seven working days' notice of the item should be given to the Monitoring Officer to advise about the nature and purpose of the item.
- 8.2 On receipt of such a request, so long as it is an appropriate matter to be considered, the Monitoring Officer will ensure that it is included on the next available agenda.
- 8.3 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Sub-Committees shall also respond, as soon as their work programme permits, to requests from the Council, Cabinet and or the relevant Committee to review particular areas of Council activity. Where they do so, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall

report their findings and any recommendations back to the Council, Cabinet and/or relevant Committee. The Council, Cabinet and/or relevant Committee shall consider the report of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or its Sub-Committees within two meetings of receiving it.

9. Policy Review and Development

- 9.1 The role of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee in relation to the development of the Council's Budget and Policy Framework is set out in in the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules at Chapter 2 Part 6 of this Constitution.
- 9.2 In relation to the development of the Council's approach to other matters not forming part of its Budget and Policy Framework, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee may make proposals to the Cabinet for developments in so far as they relate to matters within their terms of reference.
- 9.3 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee and a Scrutiny Sub-Committee may hold enquiries and investigate the available options for future direction in policy development and may appoint advisers and assessors to assist them in this process. They may go on site visits, conduct public surveys, hold public meetings, commission research and do all other things that they reasonably consider necessary to inform their deliberations. They may ask witnesses to attend to address them on any matter under consideration and may pay for any advisers, assessors and witnesses a reasonable fee and expenses for doing so.

10. Reports from the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Scrutiny Sub-Committees

- 10.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or a Scrutiny Sub-Committees will prepare a report detailing its considerations, proposals or recommendations for consideration by the Cabinet, relevant Committee or the Council.
- 10.2 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee will submit the report to the Monitoring Officer for consideration by the Cabinet (if the proposals are consistent with the existing Budget and Policy Framework), or the relevant Committee or the Council to the Council as appropriate (e.g. if the proposals or recommendations would require a departure from or a change to the agreed Budget and Policy Framework).
- 10.3 If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee cannot agree on a single final report to the Council or Cabinet as appropriate, one minority report may be prepared

and submitted for consideration by the Cabinet, relevant Committee or the Council with the majority report.

10.4 The Cabinet, relevant Committee or the Council shall consider the report of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee within two meetings of the report being submitted to the Monitoring Officer.

11. Ensuring the Cabinet's Consideration of Overview & Scrutiny Reports

- 11.1 The agenda for Cabinet meetings shall include an item entitled 'Scrutiny Reviews'. The reports of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee referred to the Cabinet shall be included following this point in the agenda (unless they have been considered in the context of the Cabinet deliberations on a substantive item on the agenda) as soon as practicable. Where an item is not considered by the Cabinet or Council (as the case maybe) within two meetings, they will provide an explanation of the reasons to the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee as soon as practicable.
- 11.2 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee and a Scrutiny Sub-Committee will have access to the Cabinet's Forward Plan and timetable for decisions and intentions for consultation. Even where an item is not the subject of detailed proposals from the Overview & Scrutiny Committee following a consideration of possible policy/service developments, it will be able to respond in the course of the Cabinet's consultation process in relation to any Key Decision.
- 11.3 Where the Cabinet has delegated decision-making power to individual Members of the Cabinet or Officers, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee will submit a copy of their report to them for consideration. At the time of doing so the Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall serve a copy of the report on the Monitoring Officer. The Cabinet Member or Officer with delegated decision-making power must consider the report and respond in writing to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee within four weeks of receiving it. A copy of their written response to it shall be sent to the Monitoring Officer and the Leader.

12. Rights of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee to Documents

12.1 In addition to their rights as Councillors, Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Sub-Committees have the additional right to documents, and to notice of meetings as set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules at Chapter 2 Part 5 of this Constitution.

12.2 Nothing in this Rule 12 more detailed liaison between the Cabinet and the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Sub-Committees as appropriate depending on the particular matter under consideration.

13. Members and Officers Giving Account to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee

- 13.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Sub-Committees may scrutinise and review decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any Council function. As well as reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the Scrutiny role, it may require any Member of the Cabinet, the Chief Executive and / or any senior Officer to attend before it to explain in relation to matters within their remit:
 - 13.1.1 any particular decision or series of decisions;
 - 13.1.2 the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; and/or
 - 13.1.3 their performance

and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required.

- 13.2 For this purpose, senior Officer includes any Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer and other appropriate senior Officers. Where there are concerns about the appropriateness of the Officer who should attend, the relevant Chief Officer shall discuss this with the appropriate Scrutiny Chair or Vice-Chair with a view to achieving consensus.
- 13.3 Where any Member or Officer is required to attend the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or a Scrutiny Sub-Committee under this provision, the Chair of that Committee will inform the Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer shall inform the Member or Officer, if necessary in writing, giving at least 7 working days' notice of the meeting at which they are required to attend (unless agreed otherwise). Any notice will state the nature of the item on which the Member or Officer is required to attend to give account and whether any papers are required to be produced for the Committee.
- 13.4 Where the account to be given to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee will require the production of a report, then the Member or Officer concerned will be given sufficient notice to allow for preparation of that report.
- 13.5 Where, in exceptional circumstances, the Member or Officer is unable to attend on the required date, then the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-

Committee shall, in consultation with the Member or Officer, arrange an alternative date for attendance.

14. Attendance by Others

The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee may invite people other than those referred to in Rule 13 above to address it, discuss issues of local concern and/or answer questions. It may for example wish to hear from residents, stakeholders, Members and Officers in other parts of the public sector and may invite such people to attend.

15. Call-In

- 15.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee has the power to Call-In decisions made by the Cabinet or a Committee (or by an individual Cabinet Member or Officer where acting under delegated authority) (which term shall also include a Joint Committee) but not yet implemented. The purpose is to consider whether to recommend that a decision be reviewed by the decision-maker This is a power which should only be used in exceptional circumstances and cannot be used in respect of day-to-day management and operational decisions.
- 15.2 When a decision is made by the Cabinet, an individual Member of the Cabinet or Officer with delegated powers or under joint arrangements, notice of the decision shall be published, including where possible by electronic means, and shall be available at the main offices of the Council normally within 3 working days of being made. All Overview & Scrutiny Committee Members will be sent copies of the records of all such decisions within the same timescale, by the person responsible for publishing the decision.
- 15.3 That notice will bear the date on which it is published and will specify that the decision will come into force, and may then be implemented, on the expiry of 5 working days after the publication of the decision, unless the decision is Called-In under the provisions set out below and shall otherwise be in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 (in respect of Executive decisions) or the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 (in respect of relevant Non-Executive decisions).
- 15.4 Within that period:
 - 15.4.1 the Chair or, in their absence the Vice-Chair, of the Overview & Scrutiny and two Members of the Committee; or

15.4.2 any five Members of the Council

may sign a notice requesting that the decision is Called-In and submit the notice to the Monitoring Officer. The notice should give reasons for the request for Call-In having regard to the principles of decision making set out at Chapter 1 Part 2 of this Constitution.

- 15.5 On receipt of the notice the Monitoring Officer will, as soon as possible, seek the views of the Chair or in their absence, the Vice-Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, or in the absence of both, a Chair or Vice-Chair of Scrutiny Sub-Committee.
- 15.6 The Chair or Vice-Chair to whom the request is referred will consider whether the request is valid. They will take account of whether a case has been made out for Calling-In the decision and whether delaying the implementation of the decision would be likely to cause significant damage to the Council's interests. They will have regard to the advice of the Monitoring Officer and S151 Officer on this point.
- 15.7 If it is considered that the request for Call-In is valid, the Monitoring Officer will convene a meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee within 7 working days, after consulting the Chair of the Committee about the date. The Committee will then proceed in accordance with Rule 15.9 below.
- 15.8 If the Chair or Vice-Chair to whom the request is referred, considers that the request is not valid the decision will not be Called-In. The Monitoring Officer will submit a report to the next available meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee giving details of the request and Chair's/Vice-Chair's reasons for refusing it.
- 15.9 Where the Overview & Scrutiny Committee considers a Call-In request, the format of the meeting will be as follows:-
- 15.9.1 after the Chair opens the meeting the Members who asked for the decision to be called in will be asked to explain their reasons for the request and what they feel should be reviewed;
- 15.9.2 on matters of particular relevance to a particular Ward Members who are not signatories to a Call-In have the opportunity to make comments on the Call-In at the meeting, such speeches not to exceed five minutes each. Ward Members will take no further part in the discussion or vote. Ward Members must register

their request to speak b contacting the Monitoring Officer by 12 noon on the day prior to the relevant hearing;

- 15.9.3 the decision-maker and any relevant Portfolio Holder(s) will then be invited to make any comments;
- 15.9.4 the relevant Head of Service or their representative will advise the Overview & Scrutiny Members on the background and context of the decision and its importance to achieving Service priorities;
- 15.9.5 the Scrutiny Members will ask questions of the Members and Officers in attendance;
- 15.9.6 the decision-maker and any relevant Portfolio Holder(s) will be invited to make any final comments on the matter.
- 15.10 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee, after considering the evidence presented to the meeting, will make one of the following decisions:-
 - 15.10.1 to take no further action, in which case the decision will take effect immediately;
 - 15.10.2 refer the decision back to the decision-maker for reconsideration, setting out the nature of the Committee's concerns; the decision-maker must then re-consider the matter with a further 10 working days, taking into account the concerns of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, before making a final decision;
 - 15.10.3 to refer the matter to full Council for its views.
- 15.11 If, following a request for Call-In, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee does not meet as set out above, or does meet but having decided to refer the decision fails to do so, the decision will take effect on the date upon which the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting should have taken place, or the expiry of that further 7 working day period during which the decision should have been referred.
- 15.12 If the matter is referred to full Council and the Council does not object to a decision which has been made, then no further action is necessary and the decision will be effective in accordance with the provision below. However, if the Council does object, it has no place to make decisions in respect of a Cabinet decision unless it is contrary to the Policy Framework, or contrary to or not wholly consistent with the Budget. Unless that is the case, the Council will

refer any decision to which it objects back to the decision-maker, together with the Council's views on the decision. That decision-maker shall choose whether to amend the decision or not before reaching a final decision and implementing it. Where the decision was taken by the Cabinet or a Committee a meeting will be convened to reconsider the decision within 10 working days of the Council's request. Where the decision was made by an individual, the individual will reconsider the decision within 10 working days of the Council's request.

- 15.13 If the Council objects to the decision but does not refer the decision back to the decision-maker, the decision will become effective on the date of the Council meeting at which the Council considered and referred the decision.
- 15.14 If a decision is referred to the Council and the Council fails to meet for the purpose of considering the decision, the decision will take effect on the expiry of the period during which the Council meeting should have been held.

16. Exceptions

- 16.1 In order to ensure that the Call-In procedure is not abused, nor causes unreasonable delay, certain limitations are to be placed on its use. These are:
 - 16.1.1 that Call-In can be invoked in respect of a decision only once;
 - 16.1.2 that Call-In will not apply to day-to-day management and operational decisions taken by Officers (Administrative Decisions)
- 16.2 A decision pertaining to an "excluded matter" pursuant to the Overview and Scrutiny (Reference by Councillors) (Excluded Matters) (England) Order 2012 cannot be Called-In.

17. Call-In and Urgency

- 17.1 The Call-In procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision being taken is urgent.
- 17.2 A decision will be urgent if any delay will likely to be caused by the Call-In process would seriously prejudice the Council's or the public's interests.
- 17.3 The record of the decision, and notice by which it is made public shall state whether in the opinion of the decision-maker, the decision is an urgent one, and therefore not subject to Call-In.
- 17.4 The Chair, or in their absence, the Vice-Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee must agree both that the decision proposed is reasonable in all the circumstances and to it being treated as a matter of urgency. In the absence of

Page 19

the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny the Mayor, or in their absence, the Deputy Mayor's consent shall be required. In the absence of both the Mayor and Deputy Mayor the Chief Executive or their Deputy's consent shall be required.

- 17.5 Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next available meeting of the Council, together with the reasons for urgency.
- 17.6 The operation of the provisions relating to Call-In and urgency shall be monitored annually, and a report submitted to Council with proposals for review if necessary.

18. The Party Whip

18.1 If a Member of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or a Scrutiny Sub Committee is subject to a party whip in respect of an issue to be considered by it, that Member must declare the existence of the whip and the nature of it before the commencement of deliberations on the matter. The declaration, and the detail of the whipping arrangements, shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

19. Overview & Scrutiny Committee Meeting Procedure

- 19.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the Scrutiny Sub-Committees shall consider the following business:-
 - 19.1.1 minutes of the last meeting;
 - 19.1.2 declarations of interest;
 - 19.1.3 consideration of any matter referred to the Committee or Sub-Committee for a decision in relation to call in of a decision;
 - 19.1.4 responses of the Cabinet or decision-maker to reports of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee;
 - 19.1.5 the business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting.
- 19.2 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or any of the Scrutiny Sub-Committees may ask people to attend to give evidence or answer questions about any items on their agenda. Meetings should be conducted in accordance with the following principles:-
 - 19.2.1 that the business be conducted fairly and all Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee be given the opportunity to ask questions of attendees, and to contribute and speak;

Page 20

- 19.2.2 that those assisting by giving evidence be treated with respect and courtesy;
- 19.2.3 that the business be conducted as efficiently as possible.
- 19.3 Following any investigation or review, the Committee or Sub-Committee shall prepare a report, for submission to the Cabinet, decision-maker and/or Council as appropriate and shall make its report and findings public.

20. Matters within the Remit of More than One Scrutiny Sub-Committee

20.1 Where a matter for consideration by a Scrutiny Sub-Committee also falls within the remit of another Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee the decision as to which Sub-Committee will consider the matter shall be agreed by the Chairs of the Sub-Committees or, if they fail to agree, the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

21. Councillor Call for Action

- 21.1 The Councillor Call for Action is a mechanism for enabling elected Members to bring matters of local concern to the attention of the Council, via the Scrutiny process.
- 21.2 Any Member may request that an item is placed on the agenda of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee for consideration. The Member making that request does not have to be a Member of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or a Scrutiny Sub-Committee.
- 21.3 The Call for Action should be an option of "last resort". In considering whether to refer to a matter in accordance with these provisions, Members must have regard to relevant guidance issued by the Secretary of State. A Call for Action will only be included on the Overview & Scrutiny Committee agenda if the Chair, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, is satisfied that:
 - 21.3.1 the Member has made all reasonable efforts to resolve the matter via direct liaison with the Council's Officers and/or relevant partners; and
 - 21.3.2 the issue of concern is a matter in respect of which the Council has a statutory power or duty and is not precluded by adopted Council policy or legislation; and
 - 21.3.3 the issue of concern has a demonstrable impact on a part or the whole of the Member's Ward;

and information to support the above criteria should accompany the Call for Action request.

- 21.4 A Call for Action cannot, in any event, relate to:
 - 21.4.1 a planning decision;
 - 21.4.2 a licensing decision;
 - 21.4.3 any matter concerning an individual or entity in respect of which that individual or entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of appeal conferred by or under any enactment;
 - 21.4.4 any matter which is vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable to be included in the agenda for, or to be discussed at, a meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.
 - 21.4.5 any matter which is a local crime and disorder matter for the purposes of Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006.
- 21.5 If the Chair (or the Vice Chair in their absence) rejects the Call for Action the Member who made the request shall be provided with reasons for the decision.
- 21.6 A valid Call for Action will be considered at the next ordinary meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or at a special meeting of the Committee within 14 days of validation whichever is the sooner. The Committee may either decide to consider the matter itself or refer it to an appropriate Scrutiny Sub-Committee.
- 21.7 The subject matter of the Call for Action will be the subject of a report from the relevant Head of Service, with such supporting information and evidence as is reasonably available. If the matter also or exclusively entails consideration of information held by another public body or partner, an appropriate representative shall be invited to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee meeting to provide that information, make representations and answer questions.
- 21.8 The Call for Action will be considered by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee in public session unless consideration of the issues involves the disclosure of exempt or confidential information as defined by the Access to Information Procedure Rules at Chapter 2 Part 5 of this Constitution.

- 21.9 The Member who referred the matter under Rule 21.2 above may address the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee in respect of the Call for Action for up to 10 minutes.
- 21.10 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee may also consider representations from any residents of the Ward affected by the Call for Action, subject to the discretion of the Chair.
- 21.11 If the Call for Action concerns issues that fall within the remit of the Cabinet, the relevant Cabinet Member / Portfolio Holder shall also attend the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee to answer questions and make any representations.

22. Reports and Recommendations on a Call for Action

- 22.1 Where the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or a Scrutiny Sub-Committee makes a report or recommendations to the Council or the Cabinet as a result of a reference under Rule 21 above, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee may publish the report, subject to the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) ("the 2000 Act") in relation to confidential or exempt information.
- 22.2 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee will, by notice in writing to the Monitoring Officer, require the Council or Cabinet:-
 - 22.2.1 to consider the report or recommendations,
 - 22.2.2 to respond to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Committees indicating what, if any action the Council or Cabinet proposes to take,
 - 22.2.3 if the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee has published the report or recommendations, to publish the response, subject to the provisions the 2000 Act (as amended) relating to confidential or exempt information,
 - 22.2.4 if the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee provided a copy of its report or recommendations to the Member who referred the matter to the Committee, to provide that Member with a copy of the response, subject to the provisions 2000 Act (as amended) in relation to confidential or exempt information,

and to do so within two months of the date when the Council or Cabinet received the report or recommendations or (if later) the date when the Monitoring Officer received the notice.

23. Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Matters

- 23.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee is designated as the Council's Crime and Disorder Committee (the "Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee") (in accordance with section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006) with responsibility for scrutinizing crime and disorder and community safety matters.
- 23.2 Any Member of the Council may give notice to the Monitoring Officer that they wish an item which they consider to be a crime and disorder matter to be included on the agenda for discussion at the next meeting of the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee.
- 23.3 On receipt of the request, the Monitoring Officer will ensure that the item is included on the next available agenda for consideration by the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee.
- 23.4 Rules 21.7 to 21.11 above shall apply to the consideration of a crime and disorder matter by the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee as they apply to the consideration of a Call for Action by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee.
- 23.5 If the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee decides not to make a report or recommendation to the Council in relation to the crime and disorder matter, it must notify the Member who referred the matter of its decision and the reasons for it.
- 23.6 Where the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee makes a report or recommendations to the Council it must:-
 - 23.6.1 provide a copy of the report or recommendations to the Member who referred the matter to the Committee and
 - 23.6.2 provide a copy of the report or recommendations to such of:-
 - (a) the responsible authorities (within the meaning of Section 5 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998); and
 - (b) the co-operating persons and bodies (i.e. those persons and bodies with which the responsible authorities have a duty to co-operate under Section 5(2) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998);

as the Council thinks appropriate.

- 23.7 Where the Overview & Scrutiny Committee makes a report or recommendations to the Council or provides a copy of a report or recommendations under Rule 23.6.2 above, the Committee must notify the Council, body or person to whom it makes or provides a copy of the report or recommendations that the Council, body or person must:-
 - 23.7.1 consider the report or recommendations;
 - 23.7.2 respond to the Committee indicating what (if any) action it proposes to take;
 - 23.7.3 have regard to the report or recommendations in exercising its functions.
- 23.8 For the purpose of carrying out its functions under the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations, 2009, the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee will meet to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of the crime and disorder functions, no less than twice in every 12 month period.
- 23.9 Where the Crime & Disorder Scrutiny Committee makes a report or recommendations to a responsible authority or to a co-operating person or body in accordance with section 19(8)(b) of the Police and Justice Act, 2006, the Committee shall review the responses received and monitor the action (if any) taken by the relevant authority, person or body in accordance with its powers under section 19(1) of the 2006 Act.

This page is intentionally left blank



Broxtowe Borough Council Constitution

<u> Chapter 2 – Part 7a</u>

Overview & Scrutiny Arrangements Flow Diagram

This page is intentionally left blank

Chapter 2 Part 7a: OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS FLOW DIAGRAM

Overview and Scrutiny allows for the understanding of why decisions are made and ensuring the best decisions are made. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee provides the opportunity for Members and Officers to improve the quality and delivery of services. The Committee has the power to consider policy review and development Call-in decisions and consider a Call for Action.

Any Member, including Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee may give notice to the Monitoring Officer that they wish an item added to the agenda of the next meeting of the Committee





The Overview & Scrutiny Committee may appoint Scrutiny Sub-Committees or working groups to carry out detailed examination of particular topics for report back to it. Such groups may be appointed for a fixed period before ceasing to exist. The Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall be entitled to appoint a maximum of six people as non-voting co-optees either as standing Members of the Committee or on a time limited basis.

When are the Meetings held?

The Council may determine a cycle of meetings for the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and its Sub-Committees.

If the Council do not set the cycle, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee shall determine its own cycle of meetings.

The Chair, or in their absence the Vice-Chair, may change the date or cancel meetings, or call additional meetings as they consider necessary to deal with the Committee's work programme.

The Quorum for meetings will be no less than 3 of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee Members.



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING PROCEDURE

The Overview & Scrutiny Committee any Scrutiny Sub-Committees shall consider the following business:-

- minutes of the last meeting;
- declarations of interest;
- consideration of any matter referred to the Committee or Sub-Committee for a decision in relation to call in of a decision;
- responses of the Cabinet or decision-maker to reports of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee;
- the business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting.
- The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or any of the Scrutiny Sub-Committees may ask people to attend to give evidence or answer questions about any items on their agenda. Meetings should be conducted in accordance with the following principles:-
 - that the business be conducted fairly and all Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee be given the opportunity to ask questions of attendees, and to contribute and speak;
 - that those assisting by giving evidence be treated with respect and courtesy;
 - \circ that the business be conducted as efficiently as possible.

Following any investigation or review, the Committee or Sub-Committee shall prepare a report, for submission to the Cabinet, decision-maker and/or Council as appropriate and shall make its report and findings public.

REPORTS

The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or a Scrutiny Sub-Committee prepare a report detailing its considerations, proposals or recommendations for consideration by the Cabinet, relevant Committee or the Council.



The report will be submitted to the Monitoring Officer for consideration by the Cabinet (if the proposals are consistent with the existing Budget and Policy Framework), or the relevant Committee or Council as appropriate (e.g. if the proposals or recommendation would require a departure from or a change to the agreed Budget and Policy Framework).



MEMBERS AND OFFICERS GIVING ACCOUNT TO THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Overview & Scrutiny Committee may require a Member or Officer to attend a meeting in relation to a report. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may also scrutinise and review decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any function of the Council under the Call-In procedure or the Councillor Call for Action Procedure, and may require any Member of the Cabinet, a Committee the Chief Executive and / or any senior Officer to attend before it to in relation to matters within their remit in relation to

- any particular decision or series of decisions;
- the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; and/or
- their performance



This page is intentionally left blank



Broxtowe Borough Council Constitution

<u> Chapter 2 – Part 7b</u>

Overview & Scrutiny Arrangements Call-in Flow Diagram

This page is intentionally left blank
Chapter 2 Part 7b: CALL – IN PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the power to Call-In decisions made by the Cabinet a Committee or an Officer under delegated authority, but not yet implemented.



SIGNED NOTICE REQUESTING DECISION TO BE CALLED-IN

A notice stating the reasons for the request for a decision to be Called-In must be signed and submitted to the Monitoring Officer within 5 working days of the publication of the decision in question

A notice may be signed by the Chair, or in their absence the Vice-Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny and two Members of the Committee; or by any five Members of the Council requesting that the decision is Called-In



When a valid request has been made:





Broxtowe Borough Council Constitution

<u> Chapter 2 – Part 7c</u>

Councillors Call for Action flow diagram

This page is intentionally left blank

Chapter 2 Part 7c: COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION FLOW DIAGRAM



Service. If the matter also or exclusively entails consideration of information held by another public body or partner, an appropriate representative shall be invited to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee meeting to provide that information, make representations and answer questions.

Reports and Recommendations on a Call for Action

Where the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or a Scrutiny Sub-Committee makes a report or recommendations to the Council or the Cabinet regarding a Call for Action, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee may publish the report, subject to the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) ("the 2000 Act") in relation to confidential or exempt information.



The Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee will, by notice in writing to the Monitoring Officer, require the Council or Cabinet:-

- to consider the report or recommendations
- to respond to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Committees indicating what, if any action the Council or Cabinet proposes to take
- if the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee has published the report or recommendations, to publish the response, subject to the provisions the 2000 Act (as amended) relating to confidential or exempt information
- if the Overview & Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Sub-Committee provided a copy of its report or recommendations to the Member who referred the matter to the Committee, to provide that Member with a copy of the response, subject to the provisions 2000 Act (as amended) in relation to confidential or exempt information

Within two meeting of the date when the Council or Cabinet received the report or recommendations or (if later) the date when the Monitoring Officer received the notice.

Scrutiny Suggestion Form

Through Overview and Scrutiny, the Council is keen to investigate issues that are important to the people of Broxtowe. If you have an issue that you feel Overview and Scrutiny should look at as part of its work, please complete the form below.

You will receive correspondence from the Democratic Services Manager letting you know what will happen next. It is important to note, however, that Overview and Scrutiny is not for dealing with individual problems and complaints.

All requests will be fully considered and a decision will be made on what would be the most appropriate way forward. In some cases, this may be to forward the issue to the Service Director or the Ward Councillor for action. There is no guarantee; therefore, that the Scrutiny Committee will take up all requests, although you will receive an explanation of what action has been taken.

First name	Surname	
Address		Postcode
Telephone number	Email	

Can we contact you about your ideas, comments and suggestions?

Would you like us to forward this form to relevant organisations?

What do you want the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to look at?

What outcomes do you expect?

Please return this form to Democratic Services, Broxtowe Borough Council, Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB or email to <u>committees@broxtowe.gov.uk</u>

For office use only – Date received:	Scrutiny Support:	
--------------------------------------	-------------------	--

This page is intentionally left blank

Scoping Report

Title of review		
Expected outcomes		
Terms of reference/Key lines of enquiry		
Possible sources of information		
How review could be publicised		
Specify site visits		
Possible witnesses		
Resource requirements		
Projected start date	Draft report deadline	
Projected completion date		

This page is intentionally left blank

Cabinet

<u>6 June 2023</u>

Report of the Leader of the Council

CABINET WORK PROGRAMME

1. Purpose of Report

Cabinet is asked to approve its Work Programme, including potential key decisions that will help to achieve the Council's key priorities and associated objectives.

2. <u>Recommendation</u>

Cabinet is asked, that the Work Programme, including key decisions, be approved.

3. <u>Detail</u>

The Work Programme for future meetings is set out below.

4 July 2023	 Statement of Accounts Update and Outturn Position 2022/23 	
	 Treasury Management Annual Report 2022/23 	
	 Grant Aid – Citizen's Advice Broxtowe 	
	 HRA 30-year Business Plan* 	
	 Environmental Health Restructure * 	
	Cultural Strategy * Christman Lighta 2022*	
	Christmas Lights 2023*	
	 Leisure Facilities Strategy* 	
	 Parking Services* 	
	 Housing Management of Communal Areas Policy* ICT Contracts* 	
	Review of the Planning Enforcement Plan dated	
	October 2019	
	 Approval of Climate Change Strategy* 	
	Infrastructure Funding Statement	
	 Equality and Diversity Report 	
	 Corporate Plan* 	
25 1010 2022	Food Service Plan*	
25 July 2023	Annual Air Quality Status Report and Action Plan*	
· ·	Smoke Control Area Replacement and Smoke	
	Control Penalty Policy*	
	 Toilet Strategy * 	
	Transition to HVO *	
5 September 2023	 Grants to Voluntary and Community Organisations 	
	Irrecoverable Arrears	
	Lifeline Service	
	 Furnished Tenancies* 	
	 House Building Delivery Plan update 	
	 Tree Strategy* 	
	- 1100 Citatogy	

Key decisions are marked with *

<u>Cabinet</u>

4. Legal Implications

The terms of reference are set out in the Council's constitution. It is good practice to include a work programme to help the Council manage the portfolios.

5. Background Papers

Nil.

Report of the Monitoring Officer

SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

1. <u>Purpose of report</u>

The purpose of this report is to request that Members formulate a Work Programme for scrutiny. This is in accordance with all of the Council's priorities.

2. <u>Recommendation</u>

The Committee is asked to CONSIDER the report and RESOLVE to agree subjects to be considered for review including those submitted as suggestions for Scrutiny.

3. Detail

Attached at appendix 1 are topics that the previous Council's Overview and Scrutiny Committee reserved as topics for future consideration. Appendix 2 is a suggested topic received. Members may wish to consider these for their current programme or choose new topics using the criteria below:

- Issues identified by Members as a key issue for the public
- Issue has a significant local impact
- Significant public dissatisfaction (e.g. through complaints)
- Issue raised by auditors
- New government guidance/legislation
- New evidence provided by external organisation
- Poor performance (e.g. evidence from performance indicators)
- High level budgetary commitment
- Pattern of budgetary overspending.

4. The work programme for the next four meetings is as follows:

21 September 2023	•
23 November 2023	•
29 January 2024 (Budget)	 Budget Proposals and Associated Strategies (O&S)
30 January 2024 (Budget)	 Budget Proposals and Associated Strategies (O&S)

5. Legal Implications

The terms of reference are set out in the Council's constitution. It is good practice to include a work programme to help the Council manage the portfolios.

6. <u>Background Papers</u> Nil

1. Topics reserved for future consideration by the previous Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	Торіс	Topic suggested by	Link to corporate priorities/values
1.	Disabled Facilities Grants	Councillor B C Carr	The Housing aim of a good quality home for everyone
2.	Environment Strategy	Overview and Scrutiny Committee	This links to all of the Council's Corporate Priorities.
3.	Child Poverty	Overview and Scrutiny Committee	A strong caring focus on the needs of all communities
4.	Budget Consultation	Overview and Scrutiny Committee	Continuous improvement and delivering value for money
5.	Homes for Life	Councillor S J Carr agreed by Overview and Scrutiny Committee	The Housing aim of a good quality home for everyone

Scrutiny Suggestion Form

Through Overview and Scrutiny, the Council is keen to investigate issues that are important to the people of Broxtowe. If you have an issue that you feel Overview and Scrutiny should look at as part of its work, please complete the form below.

You will receive correspondence from the Democratic Services Manager letting you know what will happen next. It is important to note, however, that Overview and Scrutiny is not for dealing with individual problems and complaints.

All requests will be fully considered and a decision will be made on what would be the most appropriate way forward. In some cases, this may be to forward the issue to the Service Director or the Ward Councillor for action. There is no guarantee; therefore, that the Scrutiny Committee will take up all requests, although you will receive an explanation of what action has been taken.

First name	Surname	
Hannah	Land	
Address		Postcode
Telephone number	Email	

Can we contact you about your ideas, comments and suggestions? Yes

Would you like us to forward this form to relevant organisations? Yes

What do you want the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to look at?

Voter disenfranchisement. The number and demographics of people unable to vote as a result of the voter ID requirement.

Most councillors have anecdotal awareness of residents or entire households who missed out on the ballot. Various age groups.

Levels of awareness amongst the population at the time of the election and since.

What outcomes do you expect?

Understanding the levels of disenfranchisement in terms of numbers and demographics such as age, socio-economic background.

Did the ID requirement impact on turnout?

Understanding levels of awareness regarding ID requirement amongst the general population.

Understanding the risks for future elections. What actions should be taken to ensure fair access to the ballot?

Please return this form to Democratic Services, Broxtowe Borough Council, Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB or email to <u>committees@broxtowe.gov.uk</u>

For office use only – Date received:

Scrutiny Support:

Scrutiny Suggestion Form

Through Overview and Scrutiny, the Council is keen to investigate issues that are important to the people of Broxtowe. If you have an issue that you feel Overview and Scrutiny should look at as part of its work, please complete the form below.

You will receive correspondence from the Democratic Services Manager letting you know what will happen next. It is important to note, however, that Overview and Scrutiny is not for dealing with individual problems and complaints.

All requests will be fully considered and a decision will be made on what would be the most appropriate way forward. In some cases, this may be to forward the issue to the Service Director or the Ward Councillor for action. There is no guarantee; therefore, that the Scrutiny Committee will take up all requests, although you will receive an explanation of what action has been taken.

First name	Surname
Barbara	Carr
Address	Postcode
Telephone number	Email
	Barbara.carr@broxtowe.gov.uk

Can we contact you about your ideas, comments and suggestions? Yes

Would you like us to forward this form to relevant organisations? Yes

What do you want the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to look at?

Building Control. Currently a shared service with Erewash BC. Very slow to respond to requests. No replies to emails. Do not respond to complaints. Generally poor level of service provided to Broxtowe residents and ClIrs.

What outcomes do you expect?

I would like to know the service standards and actual achievement for dealing and completing service requests. Results split between Erewash cases and Broxtowe cases.

What is the potential for improvements to current service in future if it remains where it is?

Request that Managers of the Service attend the O&S committee to explain processes, service levels and why we are experiencing the slow service levels and what can be done about it.

Depending on investigation outcomes, then review potential to bring this service back 'in house'.

Explore costs v savings. Staffing issues. Benefits v Disadvantages of returning the service to ourselves.

Please return this form to Democratic Services, Broxtowe Borough Council, Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB or email to <u>committees@broxtowe.gov.uk</u>

For office use only – Date received:

Scrutiny Support: